Guide to the Mills Family Papers

RG 339



Riley Harrison

2024

409 Prospect Street
New Haven, CT 06511
(203) 432-5301
divinity.library@yale.edu
http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	. 3
Requesting Instructions	. 3
Administrative Information	. 3
Immediate Source of Acquisition	3
Conditions Governing Access	. 3
Preferred Citation	. 4
Processing Information	. 4
Biographical / Historical	. 4
Scope and Contents	. 4
Arrangement	. 5
Collection Contents	. 6
Series I: Correspondence, 1913-2019	. 6
Series II: Reports and Collected Materials, 1914-2018	12
Reports	12
Personal Accounts	12
Newspaper Articles	12
Booklets	13
Miscellaneous Collected Materials	
Regarding Hillcrest American School	13
Series III: Writings, c. 1936 – 2018	14
School Essays	14
By Harriet Mills	14
By Angie Mills	14
Children's Book: "Raffy"	14
Miscellaneous Writings	15
Series IV: Biographical Documentation, c. 1940 – 2014	16
Series V: Photographs, 1907-2020	
Selected Search Terms	18

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY: Yale Divinity Library

409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301

divinity.library@yale.edu

http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

CALL NUMBER: RG 339

CREATOR: Mills, Wilson Plumer

TITLE: Mills Family Papers

DATES: 1907-2020

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 2.5 linear feet (6 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English (Latin script)

SUMMARY: This collection contains materials relating to the Mills family during their

lives as Presbyterian missionaries in China. The Mills family resided in China during the Nanjing Incident of 1927, the Nanjing Massacre of 1937, and World War II. The collection provides insight into China in the twentieth century containing narratives of conflict, experiences of imprisonment during the Korean War, and further descriptions of daily life as missionaries in China.

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: https://

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.339

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use on site, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.339.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

Gift of Angie Mills, 1997 and 2024.

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research.

Preferred Citation

Mills Family Papers (RG 339), Special Collections, Yale Divinity School Library.

Processing Information

Place names were modernized in the description, with the name originally used in the collection material or in an older version of the finding aid in parenthesis: e.g. "Beijing (Peking)" or "Benin (Dahomey)".

Biographical / Historical

Wilson Plumer Mills (1883-1959) was born in Winnsboro, South Carolina, and received college degrees from Davidson College, the University of South Carolina, the University of Oxford, Columbia Theological Seminary, and Union Theological Seminary. He married Cornelia Seyle Mills (1889 - 1997) in 1912 and had two children, Harriet Mills (1920 - 2016) and Mary Agnes "Angie" Mills (b. 1924).

Wilson Plumer Mills served as the YMCA secretary at the University of South Carolina before traveling to China where he served under the International Committee of YMCA from 1912 to 1932. In 1932, he resigned from the YMCA, was ordained into the Presbyterian Church, and served under the Presbyterian Foreign Mission Board in Nanjing. During this time, Cornelia Seyle Mills taught English and math in Nanking American schools, while working with Chinese women on improving healthy living conditions. While in Guling (Kuling) and Shanghai during the Sino-Japanese War, she continued teaching.

In 1937, when the Japanese army occupied Nanjing, W. Plumer Mills became vice-chairman of the International Committee for the Nanking Safety Zone, later becoming chairman. He remained in Nanjing during the Nanjing Massacre (Rape of Nanking) of 1937. During World War II, W. Plumer Mills was interned in 1941 and repatriated in 1943. He spent the next six years in Chongqing (Chungking) and Shanghai, returning to the United States in 1949. During this time, Harriet Mills resided in China as a Fulbright scholar at Peking University. After having her exit visa application rejected multiple times during the Korean War, she was imprisoned from 1951 to 1955, before returning to the United States upon release.

Harriet Mills and Angie Mills both graduated from Wellesley College. Harriet Mills went on to teach Chinese language and literature at several universities, traveling back to China to give talks and visit friends. Angie Mills researched the history of Shanghai and the Shanghai American School, returned to Shanghai to speak, and wrote about her own experiences of life in China.

Scope and Contents

The Mills family resided as Presbyterian missionaries in Nanjing (Nanking), China from 1912 - 1943, witnessing the Nanjing Incident (1927) and the Nanjing Massacre (1937), intermittently seeking refuge in Shanghai and traveling back to the United States. W. Plumer Mills remained in China until 1949, and his daughter Harriet Mills was imprisoned in China from 1950 - 1955. The collection includes correspondence, collected materials, writings, biographical information, and photographs, providing insight into the Mills family's lives in China and the United States.

Series I, Correspondence, contains mainly family correspondence from 1913 - 2019. The series features letters sent and received during the Nanjing Incident, the Nanjing Massacre, and World War II. It also includes letters to Harriet Mills during her time imprisoned and telegrams bringing news of her release. The end of the series contains notes written by Angie Mills regarding correspondence.

Series II, Reports and Collected Materials, contains six subseries. The first subseries includes reports written by W. Plumer Mills in 1914 and 1927 regarding the Nanjing Incident. It also includes reports written by various organizations during the Nanjing Massacre in 1937. The second subseries contains personal accounts of the Nanjing Incident in 1927, including by W. Plumer Mills. The third subseries contains newspaper clippings regarding news of the Nanjing Massacre, as well as release of prisoners in 1955.

Subseries four and five contain collected materials such as booklets and invitations. The sixth subseries contains information and photographs regarding Hillcrest American School in Nanking.

Series III, Writings, is organized into five subseries. The first three subseries contain writings by Harriet Mills and Angie Mills, including a last will and testament written by Harriet Mills in 1950 before her imprisonment and regarding the Mills family's life in China. The fourth subseries contains notes and drafts of a children's book, "Raffy," written and edited by the Mills family. The last subseries, titled "Miscellaneous Writings," includes notes and a notebook belonging to Cornelia Seyle Mills.

Series IV, Biographical Information, includes miscellaneous family information as well as a chronology of the lives of Wilson Plumer Mills and Cornelia Seyle Mills. In addition, the series includes identification cards of Mills family members that were used to travel between Nanjing and Shanghai.

Series V, Photographs, contains photographs of the Mills family from 1907 - 2020. The series includes a photo album with photographs dating from 1907 - 1936 and photographs of family life in Nanjing.

Arrangement

Arrangement

- I Correspondence, 1913 2019
- II Reports and Collected Materials, 1914 2018
- III Writings, c. 1936 2018
- IV Biographical Documentation, c. 1940 2014
- V Photographs, 1907 2020

Collection Contents

Series I: Correspondence, 1913-2019

b. 1, f. 1	Correspondence	1913 February
b. 1, f. 2	Correspondence	1924
b. 1, f. 3	Correspondence Including regarding the Nanjing Incident.	1927
b. 1, f. 4	Correspondence Including from Wilson Plumer Mills (WPM) China-Japan conflicts and a list of foreign residents in China.	1928
b. 1, f. 5	Correspondence Containing a letter from WPM to Mary Mills regarding Nanjing.	1929
b. 1, f. 6	Correspondence Including postcards to Harriet Mills (HM) and Mary Agnes "Angie" Mills (AM) and a letter from Kyle Adams to Mary Mills.	1931–1932
b. 1, f. 7	Correspondence	1933
b. 1, f. 8	Correspondence	1934–1935
b. 1, f. 9	Correspondence Including regarding missionary life in China and from WPM and Cornelia "Nina" Seyle Mills (CSM) to Mary Seyle.	1935 September-1935 December
b. 1, f. 10	Correspondence Including to HM regarding being appointed editor-in-chief of Shanghai American School.	1936 January- 1936 April
b. 1, f. 11	Correspondence Including from Margaret Thomson to Friends of Plainfield.	1936 November– 1936 December
b. 1, f. 12	Correspondence Containing letters to Mary Mills from WPM.	1937 February
b. 1, f. 13	Correspondence Including to HM from WPM regarding the war in China.	1937 July–1937 August
b. 1, f. 14	Correspondence Containing letters to HM regarding Japanese extending operations to Shanghai.	1937 September
b. 1, f. 15	Correspondence Containing letters to HM from WPM, CSM regarding bombing in Nanjing.	1937 October
b. 1, f. 16	Correspondence Containing family correspondence regarding WPM updates of Nanjing air raids.	1937 November- 1937 December

b. 1, f. 17	Correspondence	1938 January
	Including letters regarding the Nanjing safety zone, CSM updates on life in Shanghai.	
b. 1, f. 18	Correspondence	1938 February
	Including from the chairman of the Nanjing International Relief Committee.	
b. 1, f. 19	Correspondence	1938 March
	Including to CSM from WPM with "Intro to Notes on Nanking Economies," regarding safety zone committee, and to Mary Mills from Macy Smith on John Rabe's talk titled "Tiffin-Foreign YMCA Shanghai."	
b. 1, f. 20	Correspondence	1938 April
	Containing family correspondence.	
b. 1, f. 21	Correspondence	1938 May
	Containing letters about WPM's relief work in Nanking.	
b. 1, f. 22	Correspondence	1938 June
	Including to CSM to WPM regarding filing a protest with the Japanese consulate.	
b. 1, f. 23	Correspondence	1938 July
	Containing family correspondence regarding WPM's visit to the embassy, Hankow safety zone.	
b. 1, f. 24	Correspondence	1938 August
	Including to HM from WPM regarding the Russian-Japanese situation.	
b. 1, f. 25	Correspondence	1938 September
	Containing family correspondence regarding the possibility of war in Europe and the effects on China, and a letter on Japanese troops continuing to Hankow.	
b. 2, f. 1	Correspondence	1938 October
	Containing family correspondence regarding fall of Hankow and Canton, CSM returning to Nanjing.	
b. 2, f. 2	Correspondence	1938 November-
	Including to Mary Mills from WPM regarding goals of bringing Protestants and Catholics together and from HM regarding her application at Union Theological Seminary.	1938 December
b. 2, f. 3	Correspondence	1939 January
	Containing family correspondence regarding CSM's daily life in Nanjing.	
b. 2, f. 4	Correspondence	1939 February
	Including letters about returning to the U.S., and regarding the Chinese New Year.	
b. 2, f. 5	Correspondence	1939 March-
	Including to WPM, CSM from HM regarding release of detained International Committee men.	1939 May
b. 2, f. 6	Correspondence	1940 August
	Containing WPM's summary of assets.	

b. 2, f. 7	Correspondence Including to daughters from CSM aboard the S.S. President Cleveland.	1940 September- 1940 October
b. 2, f. 8	Correspondence Containing family correspondence regarding the closing of Shanghai American School and updates on leaving Nanjing.	1940 November
b. 2, f. 9	Correspondence Including to Dr. Ruland from WPM, regarding Presbyterian Board sending people back to the U.S.	1940 December
b. 2, f. 10	Correspondence Including family correspondence regarding CSM arriving in New York and letter to AM from Soozi of Shanghai school updates.	1941 January– 1941 February
b. 2, f. 11	Correspondence Containing family correspondence regarding evacuation news from Methodist Board.	1941 March
b. 2, f. 12	Correspondence Including to HM from John Day Company Inc. Publishers, postcard to AM from HM, and a letter with document titled "Market Prices."	1941 April
b. 2, f. 13	Correspondence Including to CSM from WPM regarding the International Relief Committee, to the Council Office from Mission and Station Secretaries regarding a request for missionaries to remain in China, to CSM from WPM regarding the Executive Committee of Missions request for CSM to return to China for work in fall of 1941.	1941 May
b. 2, f. 14	Correspondence Containing family correspondence regarding global events including tension between the U.S. and Japan, the appointment of American Military Mission in China, and the possibility of CSM returning to China.	1941 June-1941 August
b. 2, f. 15	Correspondence Containing correspondence between AM and HM.	1941 December
b. 2, f. 16	Correspondence Containing postcards.	1942 February- 1943 February
b. 2, f. 17	Correspondence Including the China Bulletin from Board of Foreign Missions of Presbyterian Church in the U.S.	1943 June-1943 October
b. 2, f. 18	Correspondence Including the China Bulletin from Board of Foreign Missions of Presbyterian Church in the U.S., to HM from Rowland & Edith, and to AM from WPM about a trip to New York.	1943 November- 1943 December
b. 2, f. 19	Correspondence Including letters of CSM's travels in India.	1944 December

b. 2, f. 20	Correspondence Including letters to WPM regarding return to China, to CSM from WPM regarding National Christian Council of Chungking, and regarding the Chinese-American Institute of Cultural Relations' annual meeting.	1945 January– 1945 February
b. 3, f. 1	Correspondence Containing family correspondence regarding the war in Europe and the Pacific, notices of group meetings in China, and the meaning of the end of WWII in Europe for China's future.	1945 March– 1945 May
b. 3, f. 2	Correspondence Including regarding Japanese surrender in China, to Lack family from Mrs. Lack regarding their release from Weihsien Internment Camp.	1945 June
b. 3, f. 3	Correspondence Including to HM from WPM with a U.S. Information Services clipping and regarding a potential Chinese civil war.	1945 September-1945 November
b. 3, f. 4	Correspondence	1945 December
b. 3, f. 5	Correspondence Including newspaper feature "Shanghai's Future" and a letter regarding life in Shanghai after the war and regarding a truce between central government of China and the communists.	1946 January- 1946 June
b. 3, f. 6	Correspondence	1946 August- 1946 December
b. 3, f. 7	Correspondence Including to CSM, AM from HM aboard S.S. General Meigs to China.	1947 January- 1947 May
b. 3, f. 8	Correspondence Including from HM regarding her arrival in China.	1947 July-1947 August
b. 3, f. 9	Correspondence Including from HM to "people" regarding travels and starting school.	1947 September-1947 October
b. 3, f. 10	Correspondence Including to family from HM regarding the College of Chinese Studies in "Peiping," including a photograph of HM.	1947 November– 1947 December
b. 3, f. 11	Correspondence Including to Edward Mills from WPM regarding Foreign Missions Conference.	1948 January- 1948 May
b. 3, f. 12	Correspondence Including to family from HM regarding student massacre in Beijing and warrant for students' arrests.	1948 June-1948 August
b. 3, f. 13	Correspondence Including from HM regarding worsening military situation in China, staying in Beijing, and regarding WPM's travels to Shanghai.	1948 September-1948 December

b. 3, f. 14	Correspondence Including to CSM from HM on Beijing surrendering to the communists and U.S. marines in Shanghai.	1949 January- 1949 May
b. 3, f. 15	Correspondence Containing updates on the war in China.	1949 June-1949 September
b. 3, f. 16	Correspondence Including regarding WPM traveling from Shanghai to San Francisco and regarding the communist party.	1949 October- 1949 December
b. 3, f. 17	Correspondence Containing letters to the family from HM.	c. 1940s
b. 3, f. 18	Correspondence Containing letters to Edward and May from WPM and AM.	1950 January– 1950 March
b. 3, f. 19	Correspondence Including from HM with photographs of life in China and information on the Korea Campaign.	1950 April-1950 July
b. 3, f. 20	Correspondence Containing letters to CSM from HM.	1950 August- 1950 September
b. 3, f. 21	Correspondence Including letters to family from HM regarding inability to leave China and a letter to CSM from James Hightower	1950 October- 1950 December
b. 3, f. 22	Correspondence Including a telegram on the witholding of HM's permit to leave China and to CSM regarding "code" of dates written on HM's writing.	1951 January– 1951 March
b. 4, f. 1	Correspondence Including to CSM from Mrs. E.J. Shaw regarding news of HM's arrest and to WPM from the American Presbyterian Mission regarding political prisons.	1951 April–1951 December
b. 4, f. 2	Correspondence Containing letters to HM regarding hopes of release.	1952 February– 1952 December
b. 4, f. 3	Correspondence Including to WPM from Legation of Switzerland regarding no news of HM.	1953 March– 1953 July
b. 4, f. 4	Correspondence Including from HM in the Peking Prison and from the Department of State regarding HM's well-being.	1954 March- 1954 August
b. 4, f. 5	Correspondence Containing a letter via National Red Cross Society of China from HM.	1954 December
b. 4, f. 6	Correspondence Including letters hoping for HM's release.	1955 May-1955 September

b. 4, f. 7	Correspondence Including telegrams regarding HM's release and letters from HM aboard S.S. American Mail.	1955 October- 1955 November
b. 4, f. 8	Correspondence Including to HM from various people regarding news of her return to the U.S.	1956–1957
b. 4, f. 9	Correspondence Containing letters to CSM from HM regarding travels back to China.	1963–1965
b. 4, f. 10	Correspondence Including regarding the Mills' Guling home.	1965–1967
b. 4, f. 11	Correspondence Including to Nanjing friends from HM regarding being back in China.	1968 March- 1988
b. 4, f. 12	Correspondence Including from HM regarding book research in China.	1990-1995 September
b. 4, f. 13	Correspondence Including copied letters to Anna regarding Hillcrest School in Nanjing in the 1930s.	1995 October- 1999
b. 4, f. 14	Correspondence Including email correspondence between AM and Dylan Nelson regarding making a film of WPM's life.	2006–2015
b. 4, f. 15	Correspondence Containing a letter to Tammy from AM including write-up and chronology of WPM's life.	2019
b. 4, f. 16	Correspondence	n.d.
b. 4, f. 17	Notes on Correspondence Containing notes on correspondence "Regarding the Rape of Nanking", "Names & Places Referred to in Mills' Letters"	2000 April
b. 4, f. 18	Notes on Correspondence Containing notes on correspondence from July 25, 1937 to April 29, 1941.	c. 2000
b. 4, f. 19	Notes on Correspondence Containing notes on correspondence from 1913 - 1981.	c. 2010s

Series II: Reports and Collected Materials, 1914-2018

	Reports	
b. 4, f. 20	"Annual Report for the Year Ending September 14, 1914" by Wilson Plumer Mills	1914
b. 4, f. 21	"The Anti-Christian Movement from Another Angle" by The China Press	1925 January 9
b. 4, f. 22	"A Report of Recent Conversations with Chinese Friends" by Wilson Plumer Mills	1927 September 10–1927 September 24
b. 4, f. 23	Reports	1927
	Including "Public Statement by A.J. Bowen, LL.D., Methodist Episcopal Mission, and President of University of Nanking," including a list of Nanjing residents.	
b. 4, f. 24	Reports	1937 April
	Including "A Brief Statement of the Far Eastern Situation" and a report from China Mission Secretary.	
b. 4, f. 25	Reports	1937 December
	Including reports by the Emergency Committee of University of Nanking and a journal update from Nanking Safety Zone.	
b. 4, f. 26	Reports	1938
	Including Japanese Newspaper propoganda and economic reports on Nanjing	
	Personal Accounts	
b. 4, f. 27	"The Nanking Incident: A Record of Personal Experiences" by Wilson Plumer Mills $$	n.d.
b. 4, f. 28	Personal Accounts of Nanking Incident	1927
b. 4, f. 28	Personal Accounts of Nanking Incident Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts.	1927
b. 4, f. 28 b. 4, f. 29	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing	1927 1927 July 6–1927 October 11
	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North	1927 July 6–1927
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills	1927 July 6–1927 October 11
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles Newspaper Clippings	1927 July 6–1927 October 11
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles	1927 July 6–1927 October 11 1938 March 31
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles Newspaper Clippings Including articles on the Rape of Nanjing, the Shanghai American School newspaper, and the CIFRC Bulletin. Newspaper Clippings	1927 July 6–1927 October 11 1938 March 31
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30 b. 5, f. 1	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles Newspaper Clippings Including articles on the Rape of Nanjing, the Shanghai American School newspaper, and the CIFRC Bulletin.	1927 July 6–1927 October 11 1938 March 31 1937–1955
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30 b. 5, f. 1	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles Newspaper Clippings Including articles on the Rape of Nanjing, the Shanghai American School newspaper, and the CIFRC Bulletin. Newspaper Clippings Containing articles regarding release of prisoners in China. Newspaper Clippings	1927 July 6–1927 October 11 1938 March 31 1937–1955
b. 4, f. 29 b. 4, f. 30 b. 5, f. 1 b. 5, f. 2	Containing personal accounts by various people who experienced Nanjing Incident and notes on the accounts. Copy of Diary "My Homeward Trip from Japan to Europe" by Mary North Mills "Conversation with Consul Tanaka with M.S. Bates" Newspaper Articles Newspaper Clippings Including articles on the Rape of Nanjing, the Shanghai American School newspaper, and the CIFRC Bulletin. Newspaper Clippings Containing articles regarding release of prisoners in China.	1927 July 6–1927 October 11 1938 March 31 1937–1955

Newspaper Articles (continued)

b. 5, f. 5	Miscellaneous Newspaper Clippings	2005-2018
b. 5, f. 6	Miscellaneous Newspaper Clippings	n.d.
	Including on Japanese war crimes.	
	Booklets	
b. 5, f. 7	"Summary of Presentations": American Missionaries and Social Change in China: Collision and Confluence Conference	1994
	Including Harriet Mills' address given at the event.	
b. 5, f. 8	Miscellaneous Booklets	1909-1940
	Including a booklet titled "Some Problems Confronting the Christian Movement in China."	
b. 5, f. 9	Miscellaneous Collected Materials	
b. 5, f. 10	Miscellaneous Collected Materials	n.d.
	Including event invitations.	
b. 5 , f. 11	Angie Mills' School Documents	1943-1948
b. 5, f. 12	Harriet Mills' School Documents	n.d.
	Regarding Hillcrest American School	
b. 5, f. 13	Photographs and Newsletters	1929-2005
	Including original photographs, pamphlets, and emails.	
b. 5, f. 14	"Seeing Nanking: Our Own Geography" by Hillcrest School	1930 June
	Containing a booklet on Nanjing addressed to Harriet Mills.	

Series III: Writings, c. 1936 - 2018

Further writings are in Series II, Reports and Collected Materials.

School Essays

	•	
b. 5, f. 15	Harriet Mills' School Essays	c. 1936
b. 5 , f. 16	"English Composition" by Angie Mills	1947
	By Harriet Mills	
b. 5 , f. 17	Last Will and Testament	1950 November
	Containing the last will written by HM during the war.	7
b. 5 , f. 18	"Thought Reform: Ideological Remold in China" by Harriet Mills	1959 December
	Containing an article in <i>The Atlantic</i> by HM.	
b. 5 , f. 19	"Reflections on a Missionary Childhood" by Harriet Mills	n.d.
b. 5, f. 20	Timeline and background notes by Harriet Mills	n.d.
	Including a "Time Table" of HM's arrest in China and personal/family background on time in China.	
	By Angie Mills	
b. 5 , f. 21	Chapter 1: Shanghai Synopsis notes	n.d.
	Containing AM's research and drafts for a synopsis on Shanghai edited by HM.	
b. 5, f. 22	Draft of Chapter 1	c. 1980s
	Including AM's notes on the history of Shanghai and on the Shanghai American School, and edits by HM.	
b. 5, f. 23	Chapter Drafts	c. 2010s
	Including outlines and various chapter drafts titled: "1912 First Impressions", "RFD 1931-1932: Tunk/Farm", "RFD 1929-1931: BT Jie Pets/Silk", "1932-1937 Morning Readings", "Shopper."	
b. 5, f. 24	Notes regarding TV documentary of Rape of Nanjing	2018
	Containing materials and notes regarding CYKAO and interview questions regarding TV documentary on the Nanjing Massacre.	
b. 5, f. 25	Speech given by Angie Mills	n.d.
	Containing a speech given by AM in China.	
	Children's Book: "Raffy"	
b. 5 , f. 26	"Raffy" Notes	2018
	Containing notes for the children's book "Raffy."	
b. 6, f. 1	"Raffy" Draft 1	n.d.
b. 6, f. 2	"Raffy" Draft	n.d.
b. 6, f. 3	"Raffy" Copy #1	n.d.

Miscellaneous Writings

b. 6, f. 4	"Ginling College Outline of Main Events" Events occuring March 24, 1927	1927 March
b. 6, f. 5	Stocks Notes Containing notes on standard oil and other stocks.	1975
b. 6, f. 6	Miscellaneous Notes	n.d.
b. 6, f. 7	"Asgn4Car" Essay	2005 October
b. 6, f. 8	Cornelia Seyle Mills' Notebook Including writing by CSM and notes on Chinese holidays.	n.d.

Series IV: Biographical Documentation, c. 1940 - 2014

b. 6, f. 10	Mills Family Biographical Information	n.d.
	Containing biographical information regarding lives of WPM and CSM.	
b. 6, f. 11	Chronology of Wilson and Cornelia Mills	2006-2014
	Containing a detailed chronology compiled by AM.	
b. 6, f. 12	Identification Cards	c. 1940
	Containing family ID cards necessary for travel from Nanjing to Shanghai.	

Series V: Photographs, 1907-2020

b. 6, f. 13	Photographs of Wilson Plumer Mills and Harriet Mills	1907–1936
	Including photographs of WPM at Oxford and as sargent and photographs of HM as a child.	
b. 6, f. 14	Mills Family Album	1921–1927
b. 6, f. 15	Photographs	1952-1965
	Including a photograph of CSM.	
b. 6, f. 16	Mary Agnes Mills Photographs	2020
b. 6 , f. 17	Miscellaneous Photographs	n.d.
	Including photographs of WPM and HM, Bethesda Presbyterian Church, and Nanjing.	

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Americans -- China
Children of missionaries -- China
Civil war--China--Shanghai--History
Cold War -- Prisoners and prisons
Communism and Christianity -- China
Communism -- China
Nanking Massacre, Nanjing, Jiangsu Sheng,
China, 1937
Presbyterian Church -- Missions -- China

Acquired From

Mills, Angie